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P R O C E E D I N G S  

COMMISSIONER JACOBS: Call the hearing to order, 

sral argument hearing to order. 

Counsel, read the notice. 

MR. KEATING: Pursuant to notice, this time and 

ilace have been set for an oral argument in Docket 

'91462-EU, petition for determination of need for an 

Llectrical power plant in Okeechobee County by Okeechobee 

lenerating Company, LLC., to address the motions to 

:ompel of Florida Power & Light and Florida Power 

!orPoration and the motions for protective order by 

Ikeechobee Generating Company and Florida Power & Light. 

COMMISSIONER JACOBS: Take appearances. 

MR. WRIGHT: Robert Scheffel Wright, the law 

iirm the Landers and Parsons, appearing on behalf of 

)keechobee Generating Company. Also with me is John T. 

,aVia, 111, same firm, same client. 

MR. MOYLE: John Moyle, Jr., appearing on 

)ehalf of Okeechobee Generating Company. 

MR. BUTLER: John Butler and Gabe Nieto of 

:teel, Hector, and Davis appearing on behalf of Florida 

lower & Light Company. 

MS. BOWMAN: Jill Bowman and Jim McGee appearing 

in behalf of Florida Power Corporation. 

MR. KEATING: Cochran Keating appearing on 
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ehalf of Commission staff. 

COMMISSIONER JACOBS: That's all? Very Well. 

s I understand it, we have a series of pretrial motions 

hat we are going to entertain today. Now, it is my 

nderstanding that the motions to compel and the motion 

or protective order have some common, some overlap in 

erms of subject matter. It will be my thought that we 

ould have arguments on those concurrently. If that is 

ot - -  and I offer that only as a suggestion. If you feel 

n any way some discomfort with that, I am open to that. 

MR. BUTLER: Commissioner Jacobs, I think that 

.arks real well. In fact, what Florida Power & Light had 

tructured really was just around the three substantive 

reas or subject matter areas that we have disputes on 

.ather than trying to do it by particular motion. And so 

re are certainly happy to proceed that way. 

COMMISSIONER JACOBS: Mr. Wright, you had a 

'oncern . 

MR. WRIGHT: Commissioner Jacobs, I think that 

s an appropriate way to proceed by subject area. I'm not 

lure what the subjects that Mr. Butler had in mind were, 

ut to me I think it breaks down pretty much as follows. 

'here are three main components of information with 

-espect to which we have asserted the trade secret 

)rivilege as confidential proprietary business 
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nformation. Those relate to a document known as the PG&E 

enerating pro forma. 

y our anticipated equipment vendor, ABB, or ASEA Brown 

overi, and certain pricing and contract detail 

nformation between us and our gas supplier with whom we 

ave a precedent agreement. The gas supplier is 

,ulfstream Natural Gas System, LLC. 

Certain cost information furnished 

Separate from that there is a different issue 

elated to the production of the computer models 

,nderlying our expert witness, Doctor Dale Nesbitt's 

estimony. For ease of reference, I think we can just 

,all these the Altos, A-L-T-0-S models. 

Finally, there are actually two more things, I 

hink. One is FPL's motion f o r  leave to propound 

nterrogatories in excess of the 200 authorized by the 

lrders establishing procedure in this case. And then 

here are some schedule - -  I'm not sure if these are on 

he notice or not. There are some scheduling motions 

)ending before you. I'm sorry, those aren't on the 

iotice. We think they do require dealing with, but they 

Lo depend on the outcome of certain decisions that will be 

lade in resolving these motions. 

COMMISSIONER JACOBS: Okay. The PG&E generating 

'osts pro forma - -  

MR. BUTLER: Yes. 
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COMMISSIONER JACOBS: - -  and as I understand it 

he gas price issues and underlying issues 

to that? 

is subservient 

MR. BUTLER: It is similar to it. The isSue 

bout their production is largely the same. They are not 

,oming from the same document, though. Basically, I would 

gree with Mr. Wright's sort of division into those 

ssues. 

rith respect to interrogatories that either would be 

mswered by or are directly propounded to expert witnesses 

bf OGC, but otherwise the way he described it is fine. 

The only one I would add is we also have an issue 

And my proposal would be to start with 

Liscussing the Altos model or models, and next to discuss 

.he interrogatory issues. Which is really, you know, two, 

he question of expert interrogatories and also the number 

)f interrogatories. And, finally, something that is sort 

)f a catch-all, this category of confidential - -  claims of 

:onfidential business information protection that goes to 

.he PG&E pro forma to some cost information that we have 

-equested to ABB documents and to the Gulfstream gas 

igreement that Mr. Wright mentioned. 

COMMISSIONER JACOBS: Okay. What kind of time 

ire we looking at? 

MR. KEATING: I believe we have an hour, is that 

!orrect ? 
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COMMISSIONER JACOBS: I'm flexible, but I don't 

ant to be here much more than an hour. 

MR. BUTLER: Flexible on the lower end. 

COMMISSIONER JACOBS: Yes. Here is what I think 

would like to do. Unless you have an objection, let's 

o have arguments on the Altos model first. 

hat to be the most substantive issue? 

And I take 

MR. BUTLER: I think that is probably right. 

COMMISSIONER JACOBS: Okay. So let's reserve - -  

et's hold out 15 minutes, we can stretch it to 20 minutes 

f need be for that one. Is that okay? 

MR. WRIGHT: We are fine in proceeding with the 

Jtos models, Commissioner. 

COMMISSIONER JACOBS: Okay. Then let's go to 

he pro forma issue. Is there much controversy around 

nterrogatories, is that something that is in significant 

Li sput e? 

MR. WRIGHT: I would have to say yes, sir. We 

)bject fairly strongly to their request for leave to - -  

.heir motion to propound additional interrogatories which 

.hey propounded after we had already served them. 

COMMISSIONER JACOBS: Okay. I just wanted to 

now what - -  

MR. WRIGHT: And I think the issue on the 

!xperts responding to interrogatories is also going to be 
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mtentious. 

COMMISSIONER JACOBS: Okay. Why don't we hold 

hose then to the 3rd. 

ogether perhaps. 

Maybe we can combine those two 

That would be useful. 

MS. BOWMAN: Commission Jacobs, Jill Bowman for 

lorida Power Corporation. 

or last, but there is just a very few requests for 

dmissions that are also the subject of one of our motions 

o compel that I would like to address. 

I think this can be reserved 

COMMISSIONER JACOBS: Okay. That sounds like 

robably we could hold it until then. 

MR. WRIGHT: Commissioner, just so I'm clear, 

'ou said we would do the pro forma second. 

.o include the other information with respect to which we 

issert confidentiality, the ABB and the Gulfstream 

.nf ormation? 

Did you mean 

COMMISSIONER JACOBS: All of that is information 

zontained in the pro forma? 

MR. WRIGHT: No, sir. 

COMMISSIONER JACOBS: Because I think those are 

iifferent documents. 

MR. BUTLER: They are. 

MR. WRIGHT: They are different documents. They 

ire all related to our pricing information and our 

:ompetitively sensitive proprietary business information. 
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COMMISSIONER JACOBS: But there certainly is a 

rivilege. 

MR. WRIGHT: The privilege is the same, the 

egal issues will be the same. 

COMMISSIONER JACOBS: I'm fine rolling those all 

n if you all are fine. 

le. 

I think that would be fine with 

MR. BUTLER: That's what we would prefer, too. 

COMMISSIONER JACOBS: Okay. Then that would be 

reat. Did I miss anything? All right. Let's have fun. 

'ell1 start here. Now, I'm just going to say per side, I 

lidn't want to hold rebuttal or anything of that nature, 

iut I'm open to that if you guys want to hold tight to 

hat kind of procedure. But I will just give you each 

'our time per side and then we would go on the next issue. 

s that a reasonable procedure, or do you absolutely feel 

he need have rebuttal back? 

MR. BUTLER: It depends on what they say. 

COMMISSIONER JACOBS: I just thought of this. 

m each one of these you had a motion - -  let me make sure 

have it correct. You had a motion to compel, you had a 

lotion for protective order. I just thought technically 

:ach should have an opportunity to present their own 

lotion then there would be a response to that motion. 

MR. WRIGHT: Split it. 



10 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

1 5  

1 6  

1 7  

18 

1 9  

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

2 5  

COMMISSIONER JACOBS: Yes, that is my thought. 

think you can cover - -  I want to make sure you have 

dequate opportunity to cover your ground without getting 

nto all of those technical frailties. 

hat I will do, we will go ahead and just split the time 

n half between the two sides and then move on to the next 

ssue, okay? 

And so here is 

MR. BUTLER: That's fine. 

COMMISSIONER JACOBS: For this one we'll go 

lhead and say 15 minutes on this one. 

tnd a half minutes and you have seven and a half minutes. 

The next one, the pro forma, could we do it in 

So you have seven 

.en minutes? So you have five minutes per side. 

MR. BUTLER: I think so. 

COMMISSIONER JACOBS: Okay. And then we will 

just kind of work from there. Those two up front I 

:bought we might want to do some time limitation and then 

tf we need to press on we can do that, but let's just 

;tart with that as a beginning premise. Is that okay? 

MR. BUTLER: That's fine. 

COMMISSIONER JACOBS: Now, are you going to 

irgue, as well? 

MS. BOWMAN: Yes, Commissioner Jacobs. We had 

igreed that Florida Power & Light would take the lead on 

zhese arguments which are all made by both Florida Power 
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:orPoration and Florida Power & Light. 

)pportunity just to add some comments. 

I would like an 

COMMISSIONER JACOBS: Okay. That works fine for 

ne if that is okay with you, Mr. Wright. 

MR. WRIGHT: Well, as long as it is in their 

]lock of time it's fine with me. 

MR. BUTLER: I will just try to finish a minute 

3r two early. 

COMMISSIONER JACOBS: Okay. I'm going to be 

Elexible a little bit. I want to make sure that we don't 

zlose anybody off. I will be a bit flexible to make sure 

that we cover the ground, that is my main concern here. 

MS. B O W :  Thank you, Commissioner. 

COMMISSIONER JACOBS: Those are kind of sketchy, 

but those are the ground rules. And with that - -  

MR. BUTLER: May I proceed? 

COMMISSIONER JACOBS: You will go first. Go 

ahead. 

MR. BUTLER: Thank you, Commissioner. And as 

noted, this is concerning the question of access to the 

Altos computer models. OGC has built its case around 

analyses that its witness Doctor Nesbitt performed using 

the Altos and NARE models. Unfortunately, so far it has 

refused to allow either FPL or Power Corp access to those 

models unless they agree to one of two alternatives; buy a 
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ear long standard license costing $85,000,  or view the 

odels under conditions that would have the following 

eally troublesome provisions from our perspective. 

.equire constant supervision of the Altos personnel - -  or 

~y Altos personnel of FPL's consultants providing OGC a 

lerfect opportunity to a road map to FPL's trial 

ireparation. To make matters worse, FPL would have to pay 

IGC for those Altos personnel sitting over their 

ihoulders. 

Second is to give OGC complete access before 

.rial to all of FPL's work product generated from use of 

.ts models and a guarantee that that information would be 

ldmissible at trial. Third is to muzzle FPL's 

:onstitutional right ever to criticize the Altos models in 

.he future even if they were used against FPL in 

iubsequent adverse proceedings. 

And, finally, it would require FPL's experts, 

:ome of whom live and work within a few miles of Altos' 

lalifornia offices to travel across country here to view 

:he models that could just as easily be viewed in 

lalifornia. And to add insult to that injury, FPL would 

Lave to pay for Altos personnel to travel here so that 

:hey could babysit the FPL consultants. 

Now, OGC has conceded that intervenors are 

mtitled to an opportunity to conduct discovery with 



13 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

1 5  

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

2 1  

22 

2 3  

24 

25 

?spect to the Altos models. 

Ition for protective order at Page 9.  

msistent with the Commission's discovery order in the 

>tal telecommunications service docket where the 

rehearing officer you may recall found that equity in 

his proceeding dictates that AT&T should provide 

easonable access to relevant information upon which it 

ases its filed cost proxy model. 

That is in their first 

And this is 

All we are asking you to do here today is to 

irect OGC to arrange for reasonable access. We are not 

sking for free access and we are not asking for unlimited 

ccess. We just want the burden of access to be allocated 

ore fairly than what OGC has been willing to do. And for 

his we propose two alternatives, either of which is 

cceptable to FP&L, but both of which unfortunately so far 

ave been rejected by OGC. 

The first is that FPL would pay $17,000 for a 

imited use two-month license under the standard terms of 

.ltos' license agreement. This payment represents 20 

lercent of the 85,000 fee for a year-long license, or 

lasically 10 percent of the annual license fee per month. 

COMMISSIONER JACOBS: So Altos does offer this 

:ind of a limited license? 

MR. BUTLER: No. It has not been offered to us 

.o this point. 
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COMMISSIONER JACOBS: Have they offered it to 

)thers? 

MR. BUTLER: I don't know whether they have 

,ffered this limited term license or not. They have only 

Jffered to us the year long $85,000.  

But, OGC's counsel, Mr. Wright, has advised me 

3n January 4 that a short-term license fee of 10 percent 

?er month is what a vendor of an undisclosed but what he 

zharacterized as well-known electric utility modeling 

software company provides. It is also consistent with 

tihat Michael Rib, who is Power Corp's Director of Resource 

Planning, and Matthew Harris, Senior Consulting Project 

Yanager for Henwood Energy Services have attested to in 

affidavits to the Commission about the availability of 

short-term licenses to models for these sorts of purposes. 

Now, FPL proposes that under this short-term 

license the Altos models would be loaded onto four FPL 

laptop computers, two of which would be used by FPL and 

its attorneys, and the other two by FPL's consultants. 

FPL would agree to pay an additional $5,000 for the extra 

two computers, because the standard Altos license 

agreement only provides for two computers and says that it 

is like $2,500 each to get the model loaded on an 

additional computer. So we would pay the extra $5,000 to 

have it loaded onto the extra two computers. FPL's 
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onsultants would agree to be bound by all the terms of 

he license, 

odels to this proceeding, and would enter into any 

easonable confidentiality and nondisclosure agreement 

equired by Altos. 

including the provisions limiting use of the 

The laptops would be presented to Altos 

mmediately following the conclusion of this proceeding 

or Altos to unload the models. I understand that there 

s readily available software that can prevent copying of 

iodels while they are residing in the laptop, so copying 

)f models by the consultants or FPL shouldn't be a 

zoncern. 

Finally, FPL would turn over all the model runs 

:hat it performed at the time that it unloaded the models, 

)ut not during the proceeding where they could be used 

tgainst us as essentially free discovery. The only 

nodification to Altos' standard license agreement that FPL 

vould require is that there is a provision in it saying 

:hat Altos can identify FPL as a licensee. And under the 

:ircumstances that doesn't seem appropriate. FPL is 

Licensing the model only because it needs to for the 

iurposes of participating in this proceeding. And the 

3tated reason why that access is important which is to be 

lble to allow different licensees to talk to each other 

lbout sharing the model wouldn't apply here. We wouldn't 
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lave any plans of sharing it with any other licensee. 

Alternatively, FPL is prepared to accept - -  

COMMISSIONER JACOBS: Is there some kind of 

igreement, side agreement that would cover that? 

MR. BUTLER: I'm sorry, cover what? 

COMMISSIONER JACOBS: Your proposal? Basically, 

an agreement on limited disclosure or confidentiality as 

10 your use outside of the scope of your discovery. 

MR. BUTLER: We have not come to terms of a 

specific agreement to that. This proposal I just outlined 

ias been presented in outline form to OGC, but hasn't been 

3ccepted and hasn't gone farther than that yet. But we 

zertainly would be happy to work something like that out 

nrith them if that is what the Commission prefers for us to 

3 0 .  

Alternatively to that approach, which is 

basically using the standard license agreement, just 

limiting its term and limiting the price under the 

licensing agreement, FPL is also prepared to accept OGC's 

proposal for on-site kind of nonpossessory access to the 

models except for the four extremely onerous requirements 

that I mentioned earlier that we feel the Commission 

should not permit. 

Now, first of all, there is no reason the access 

need only be here at the Commission's offices instead of 
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: ALTOS’S offices in San Jose, California. It could be 

3de available in both places without any hardship to 

Ltos and would be much cheaper for FPL and its 

msultants. 

Second, Altos personnel should not be allowed to 

abysit F P L ‘ s  consultants while they review the models and 

onduct test runs . 

Third, FPL and its consultants should not have 

o turn over the models runs or other output from their 

eview of the models until after the proceeding is 

oncluded so that it doesn‘t amount to free discovery. 

nless, and let me make one point clear, depending on the 

ircumstances, particularly if the experts who reviewed 

he models are testifying experts, there is a pretty good 

rgument that their work product, which could include 

heir model runs, may be discoverable under conventional 

ules of discovery. And if they are, we would accede to 

heir production and discovery. 

All we want is the same protection that the 

d e s  of discovery would normally provide distinguishing 

Netween testifying experts on the one hand and 

ontestifying experts on the other. We just don’t want to 

.ave to give more access to our work product than what the 

.ules of Civil Procedure would require. 

Third is that FPL should be - -  or, I’m sorry, 
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ourth and final is that FPL should be allowed to comment 

n the models and criticize them if appropriate in any 

orum so long as it does not disclose confidential 

nformation about the models in the course of doing SO. 

The only legitimate concern I can see in Altos' 

ondition about not bad-mouthing the models is that FPL or 

tthers with access shouldn't be allowed to use that as a 

ehicle to get confidential information about the models 

lade public. And we would certainly agree not to disclose 

nything in future comments on the model that would be 

,onfidential information about them. 

We just don't want to be hamstrung to where if 

re have a proceeding just like this one on another plant 

iext year and the applicant in that situation uses Altos 

iodels that we have to sit on our hands and not point out 

laws in them at that point in time. So, that is pretty 

iuch it. 

Either of those two approaches is acceptable to 

'PL. You know, there is a clear need for FPL and Florida 

'ower Corporation to get access to these models to be able 

o test how they work and how the conclusions were 

ienerated. Those models are fundamental to the case that 

)GC has made in this proceeding, and I think either of the 

ipproaches I have suggested would be more than fair to 

)GC . 
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Thank you. 

COMMISSIONER JACOBS: Could you walk me through 

riefly again your on-site option. 

ith there is as I understood it, you were willing to - -  

ou wanted to do it in California, is that correct? You 

.auld be open to doing it in California. 

And what I'm concerned 

MR. BUTLER: Yes, at Altos' office in 

lalifornia. That instead of having to come here to the 

!ommission where they would have set up a computer for it, 

)ur people would just go to the Altos office in California 

.o look at the computer. 

COMMISSIONER JACOBS: But you would want to have 

I degree of privacy, you would not want - -  

MR. BUTLER: Yes. Basically, we would just go 

.nto a room where the computer would be and the computer 

.n the room without having an Altos person sitting in 

:here watching every keystroke to see what we are doing. 

COMMISSIONER JACOBS: Would you do the same 

:unction, you would load it into your laptops there, as 

yell? 

MR. BUTLER: No, I'm sorry. This would be their 

Laptop. 

rhatever it is, but use it in their facility. The main 

jifference between the two options, really you just hit on 

it, is whether we possess the computers or not. 

We would use their laptop or their desk top, 



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

1 7  

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

20 

In the first option that we would be paying 

17,000 for this license, we would actually possess the 

omputers until the end of the case and then let them 

nload their models. 

In the second we don't possess it. All we do is 

ither come here to the Commission or go to Altos' office 

n California and use their computer rather than getting 

he stuff loaded onto our own computers. 

COMMISSIONER JACOBS: Okay, I understand. 

MS. BOWMAN: Commissioner Jacobs, may I? 

COMMISSIONER JACOBS: Yes, go ahead. 

MS. BOWMAN: For Florida Power Corporation, I 

rould just like to say that we are in accord with Florida 

power & Light's position. 

llternative proposal to the extent that they have, but 

.here have been several exchanges between the parties 

Zoncerning what we view as the custom and practice in the 

.ndustry, which is for modeling companies such as Altos to 

)rovide limited licenses or limited licensing arrangements 

ior just these kind of circumstances where the party 

;eeking discovery of the model is not interested in using 

:he models for any commercial purpose, but only for the 

mrposes of litigation. We have not been able to make any 

?round in those regards, although we do think we have 

suggested a payment of $17,000 which would be in accord 

We have not prepared an 
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ith the industry custom and practice of between 10 and 20 

ercent for the type of use that we are trying to gain 

ere. 

On the other side for the on-site use, Florida 

ower Corporation is willing to either go to California or 

o have that made available to us here at the Public 

ervice Commission. We would agree with Florida Power & 

ight that the conditions of the OGC's proposal regarding 

he on-site access to the models is onerous in just a very 

ew points, and if we can take those out of the picture 

hen the remainder of their proposal would be acceptable. 

nd those, again, are the supervision of consultants or 

xperts in doing their work and the agreement that any 

rork that is performed by Florida Power Corporation and/or 

ts consultants would be automatically subject to 

iscovery and admissible in this proceeding. 

COMMISSIONER JACOBS: I would be interested in 

'our interpretation of the scope of the right, or the 

cope of access you have a right to get to expert - -  to 

he basis of an expert witness' testimony. And 

pecifically, as I understand, the distinction between 

[hat the rules allow and what the rules of evidence allow. 

MR. BUTLER: Well, you know, I think that your 

lecision in the telecommunications services docket pretty 

fell sums up the tension. You know, you have got on the 
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)ne hand this question of not having sort of ownership or 

lirect control over the models in question and, therefore, 

:he issue of the extent to which the rules of discovery 

:hat would apply if this was an OGC model, you know, 

govern it at all. 

But on the other hand, the sort of fundamental 

Lssue of fairness about needing access to information that 

.s going to be central to another party's case. And I 

:hink that even OGC would concede here that, you know, the 

iltos models are central to the case. You know, we have 

Jeen given inputs and outputs, but basically all that is 

loing is just letting us kind of see how they did their 

runs. We can't explore, you know, what happens with the 

nodels under circumstances other than what it is that, you 

mow, Altos has chosen to present. 

And I don't know of any legal test, to be honest 

gith you, better than just the reasonable access that you 

lad described in that order. But, you know, reasonable 

iccess is important. If we don't get to actually quote, 

inquote, play with the models, we can't really understand 

it a level sufficient to adequately critique their case 

uhat it is that OGC has used the models to do. 

So it is, you know, extremely important that we 

3et that access. We have proposed conditions that I think 

3ddress all of OGC's reasonable concerns about bad things 
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hat could happen from our access to it, and it just comes 

Lown to kind of an equitable balancing in my mind of, you 

:now, need versus impact. And I think that we have 

ldequately addressed the impact and that the need here in 

4ew of centrality of the models to their case is pretty 

!lear. 

COMMISSIONER JACOBS: Okay. Thank you. 

Ir. Moyle or Mr. Wright. 

MR. WRIGHT: Thank you, Commissioner Jacobs. 

COMMISSIONER JACOBS: They went over, so 1'11 

five you some flexibility in time, as well. 

MR. WRIGHT: I hope not to need more than seven 

md a half minutes. We'll give it a shot. 

This case is very much like the cost of basic 

.oca1 telecommunications service, or at least the 

liscovery dispute in this case is very much like the 

;hilar discovery dispute in the cost of basic local 

ielecommunications service docket in which you made a 

xling on a similar discovery issue last year. 

We don't have the models. OGC is not a 

.icensee. No affiliate of OGC is a licensee of any of the 

iodels here. One of OGC's distant affiliates has licensed 

1 different version of the gas model, but that is it. 

'urthermore, these models represent the valuable 

tntellectual property of Altos Management Partners and 
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Market Point, Inc. Market Point, Inc. owns and markets 

the software platform in which the Altos models run and 

that software platform is called Market Point trademark. 

We agree with the movants here and we are a 

counter movant in that we have moved for a protective 

order, that the real issue is reasonable access. We 

submit that we have offered more than reasonable access to 

these models. By hand we handed counsel for Florida Power 

Corporation and Florida Power & Light Company on 

December Ith, two months ago today, a proposed term sheet 

by which these models would be made available to them and 

their bonafide employees here at the Public Service 

Commission on computers maintained here at no licensing 

fee whatever. 

To protect Altos and Market Point's interests in 

their valuable intellectual property, we proposed that if 

they were to use consultants to review these models and 

work with them, that Altos would be allowed to have those 

consultants supervised. In the cost of basic local 

telecommunications service, or just cost of local service 

docket, you ruled that the intervenors who sought the 

intellectual property of AT&T's consultant shall not be 

permitted to remove the requested information from the 

consultant's premises. 

We are concerned, Altos and Market Point are 
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:oncerned that certain of their competitor consultants 

:odd copy down information from the stuff, and frankly 

.t's going to be hard for them not to learn it and know it 

myway, but we are concerned they could copy it down and 

:ake it away with them. This would be a significant 

:conomic loss of Altos' and Market Point's valuable 

intellectual property. That is why the supervision 

xoposal is in there. 

Now, subsequent to this, there are - -  I will 
:ay, I aver to you as a matter of fact that the president 

If Altos, who is also an officer in Market Point, Doctor 

Jesbitt, has advised me that there are a couple of 

:onsulting companies in particular whom he views as 

serious competitors, and the disclosure of this 

information to those competitors would be very sensitive 

:o him. 

We have offered in January - -  I do not remember 

:he date - -  but by letter to counsel for FPC and FPL, we 

nave offered to relax the supervision requirement, that is 

not to even require supervision if Altos were given the 

3uthority to screen the consultants. For example, say you 

zan't use Consultant X because they are too serious of a 

zompetitor. You can use A ,  B, C, D, or E, but you can't 

Ise X or Y. But the point is that the supervision 

requirement is in there to protect Altos' valuable 
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information. 

I will tell you that the starting point for FPC 

and FPL was that we had to give the information away for 

Eree and that has never been the practice here. In every 

zase I have been in or known about where they used PROMOD, 

3r PROSCREEN, or COUGAR (phonetic), or anything else, and 

this actually extends to civil litigation in which I 

personally have been involved, they have said we object, 

nre will not give you discovery of these models until you 

iemonstrate to our satisfaction that you have the license, 

and we have taken the same position here. And further, we 

have moved for a protective order. 

The gist of their argument that Altos should be 

nade to turn this over for a proposed license fee of 

$17,000 is really just a challenge to the reasonableness 

3f Altos' standard commercial fees. The terms that we 

have proposed to them, if they want to license the model 

and have the basically unlimited use and allow their 

zonsultants to use it and whatever that goes with that, is 

the standard commercial terms and conditions under which 

A l t o s  and Market Point make their products available. I 

am advised by Altos and Market Point that they have not 

3ffered any limited term licenses to others. 

As to the location of provision of models, we 

frankly had not focused on that. I doubt that that would 
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-eally be a problem. I think the bigger issue is the 

iupervision issue. Regarding the proposal that they be 

Tequired to turn over all of their interim runs, we 

)elieve that that is - -  it actually should be fairly 

liscoverable in any event and we just want assurance that 

re won't get in another discovery fight on that that will 

:ake us past the filing date. 

I'm not saying that their consultants would do 

:his or not, but I have heard from other attorneys who 

Iractice in contentious litigation that there is a 

lractice of having one set of persons do a bunch of runs 

uho are nontestifying experts, and from whom discovery is 

nost difficult, and screen those runs so that the only 

:hing that the testifying expert ever sees is something 

:hat suits their theory of the case. 

And given the severe restrictions provided in 

:he Rules of Civil Procedure of discovery of nontestifying 

:xperts, frankly we are concerned about exactly that 

;cenario being played out here. 

Finally, as regards the proposed restriction in 

3ur no license fee proposal, and that is that they not be 

illowed - -  that they be restricted from bad-mouthing the 

lltos models, we have several concerns. Frankly, Altos 

ias a competitive concern that for whatever reason those 

issociated on the other side might see fit to disparage 
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the Altos models to other potential clients, and potential 

clolleagues or existing colleagues of Altos. And that is 

dhat we are trying to protect against. 

Frankly, I think Mr. Butler's hypothesized 

example that next year in a proceeding in which the Altos 

model was again at issue they wouldn't be able to talk 

about it is off base. We have not in any way proposed 

that they be restricted from criticizing the model on the 

record in this case. We made it clear. They can say 

whatever they want to on the record in this case where we 

have the protection of being able to cross-examine them 

and find out if there really is a basis for their 

criticism. 

Once the case is over, if they are out there 

talking to another merchant plant developer, or if their 

consultant is talking to another merchant plant developer 

and says, you know, that Altos model isn't any good, dah, 

dah, dah, Altos would have no recourse. It is something 

that would be very difficult to detect in the first place 

and would have no recourse. 

COMMISSIONER JACOBS: That was the question I 

posed earlier. Would this be something that could be 

subject to a nondisclosure agreement? 

MR. WRIGHT: Well, I think it would be. The 

problem is we are trying to get some protection on the 
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front end of exactly that. That is what we have proposed. 

You know, not only nondisclosure, but nondisparagement 

Dutside the record of this case. If the Altos model is on 

the record in another merchant proceeding next year, I 

would think we would probably be going forward on the same 

terms. I wouldn't anticipate Doctor Nesbitt changing his 

mind about the terms. It would be at issue in the record 

there and I would expect that Altos and Market Point whose 

issue this really is, would be amenable to similarly 

allowing discussion, criticism, critique, what have you of 

the models on the record in that proceeding where they 

would have the protection of being able to cross-examine 

and challenge such criticism. 

In closing, Your Honor, two more things. One, 

we have turned over all the model runs that were done in 

connection with this case. At least to the best of my 

knowledge that is true. We turned over a diskette or a 

zip disk, actually, containing 6 3  megabytes and thousands 

of pages of spreadsheets for all the runs here. 

And, finally, again, this comes down to 

reasonable access. We submit to you that the standard 

commercial terms and conditions offered by Altos under 

which it licenses its models to everybody, anybody in the 

world, are reasonable and we submit to you that within the 

principles articulated in the cost of local service 
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liscovery order cited in our pleadings that our proposal 

or a no license fee on-site availability to bonafide 

:mployees with certain restrictions applicable to 

)otential competitive consultants more than satisfies the 

-easonable access requirements enunciated in your order. 

ind accordingly, we think our motion for protective order 

ught to be granted and their motion to compel ought to be 

lenied. 

COMMISSIONER JACOBS: Very well. I will ask you 

:he same question I asked. How do you see the tension 

:hen - -  the rules give - -  in my mind they give more 

ilexibility in terms of allowing discovery of experts and 

)n the face of the statute. And, I'm sorry, I didn't give 

IOU the statute. I realized that after I had asked you. 

:t was 90.708 - -  705, I'm sorry, which provides what the 

:erms are for discovery for an expert witness. 

MR. WRIGHT: Uh-huh. 

COMMISSIONER JACOBS: I'm sorry, for disclosure. 

Jot discovery, disclosure. There seems to be that tension 

:here. How would you evaluate that? 

MR. WRIGHT: My recollection, and Mr. Keating 

appears to have it handy, my recollection is that that 

statute says that an expert witness shall reveal and 

Jrovide testimony regarding his - -  the basis for his 

>pinions and factual statements given in his testimony 
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(hen called upon to do so. And by the rules of discovery 

If experts, basically there is a very limited number of 

nterrogatories you can ask of experts relating to their 

.dentification. You can ask for production of documents 

ind you can take their deposition. I would see that 

.eally being resolved by their being able to look over the 

Yxpert's shoulders during the deposition as occurred for 

it least a day and a half, I think a little bit longer in 

:he Duke/New Smyrna case, in which Doctor Nesbitt was also 

i witness, and ask questions about the model with Doctor 

Iesbitt going forward. So I don't really see a problem 

:here, Your Honor. 

COMMISSIONER JACOBS: Let me go to their on-site 

)ption. 

MR. WRIGHT: Yes, sir. 

COMMISSIONER JACOBS: I take it you are opposed 

IO that? 

MR. WRIGHT: I can't say whether I am or not. I 

:hink I saw it in passing, but frankly with conversations 

vith opposing counsel, I had really been focusing on the 

iondisparagement provision, and the fee provision, and the 

supervision of consultants provision. And, frankly, I 

lave not discussed that with Doctor Nesbitt. I would be 

villing to do so. I don't see that as being a real 

3roblem myself. I would have to confer with Doctor 
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esbitt, but I do not see that as being a problem, sir. 

COMMISSIONER JACOBS: Okay. And as I 

nderstand - -  now, how do you respond to the contention 

aised by the movants that there is a standard industry 

ractice of allowing these limited licenses? 

MR. WRIGHT: I can't say that that is a standard 

ndustry practice or not, Commissioner Jacobs. I know 

hat one company that I called said that they do that on 

he basis of about 10 percent of the annual licensing fee 

er month. I can tell that you in litigation in which we 

ere involved against Florida Power Corporation, we had to 

ay for a six month license because that was the minimum 

hat the vendor in that instance, ABB, would give us. And 

e had to pay $55,000 for it. So I can't agree that that 

s the custom and practice in the industry. It sure 

asn't when I was on the other side of it two years ago. 

COMMISSIONER JACOBS: And I don't - -  we don't 

ave jurisdiction over that party anyway here, so - -  

MR. WRIGHT: Not directly. Well, I think the 

Nrinciples you set forth in the cost of local service 

xder were fine. You said equity requires that they be 

iven reasonable access to this third party vendor's 

nformation. And you provided for protections where they 

rouldn't be allowed to take it away. We think what we 

lave proposed entirely satisfies the principles 
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wticulated in that order. It provides reasonable access. 

rhey could have had access since the second week of 

Iecember to these models here in the Gunter Building. We 

Delieve we have offered reasonable access. No license 

Eee, and as of mid-January or so we even offered, subject 

LO Altos' ability to screen the consultants to prevent 

4ltos' and Market Point's most serious competitors from 

seeing the information unsupervised. 

COMMISSIONER JACOBS: All right. So much for 

that one. That takes care of the issue of the model. 

I'm sorry, I didn't leave any time for staff. 

Did you have any - -  

MR. KEATING: I didn't plan to join in the 

argument. I don't have a horse in this race. 

COMMISSIONER JACOBS: Very well. Then let's 

move on to the pro forma issue. I don't know whether it 

would be worthwhile - -  it sounds like this issue may be 

more to your leading off, Mr. Wright, than the companies? 

MR. BUTLER: I think that we are the ones who 

are seeking the information and moving for compelling it. 

It seems like it makes sense for us to be the ones to tell 

you why we ought to get it and them to tell you why they 

don't think we should have it. I mean, if you want to 

reverse it, that's fine, but it is in many respects in the 

same posture as the model issue. 
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proceed as we COMMISSIONER JACOBS: We Wil 

ave . 

MR. BUTLER: We have kind of bundled together 

everal things where the point is a claim by OGC that they 

ill not produce either answers to interrogatories or 

ocuments because they are confidential business 

nformation. And there are four categories here of these. 

GC has objected to providing any answer to Interrogatory 

umber 82 concerning the capital costs for the project or 

he cost of capital for the project. Similarly, in 

esponse to Interrogatory Number 83, OGC has given the 

otal direct construction costs for the project, but has 

efused to disclose either the development costs or the 

otal, the construction plus development costs. And, 

inally, in response to Interrogatory Number 1, OGC has 

efused to provide detail on its direct project 

onstruction cost estimate of $190 million. That is sort 

sf the first of these areas. 

The second is, in response to Request for 

'roduction Number 8, OGC has provided a document called a 

recedent agreement with Gulfstream Natural Gas System, 

u t  has redacted from it information on the conditions 

inder which OGC is entitled to the benefits of that 

Igreement, and certain information on gas transportation 

rites that are included within the agreement or actually 
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rithin a second agreement that is attached to it. 

The third category is in response to Request for 

lroduction Number 43, OGC has refused to produce a 

jro forma analysis of the project and related information 

.hat were prepared by PG&E. 

COMMISSIONER JACOBS: I'm sorry, say it again, 

That information? 

MR. BUTLER: Refused. To produce a pro forma 

inalysis of the project and related information prepared 

)y PG&E Generating, that is the pro forma that you were 

referring to initially. 

And then finally in response to Request for 

'reduction Number 24  and 26, concerning operational 

reliability and availability and maintenance schedules for 

:he project, OGC has provided a generic ABB reference 

pide for the GT 24  gas turbines that it intends to use at 

:he project, but it states in its response that the 

responsive documents to that request, quote, include, 

inquote, the reference guide. And the answer doesn't 

:ommit whether there are or aren't other responsive 

locuments. Those are kind of the four categories of 

locuments and information, interrogatories to which this 

2onfidentiality argument applies. 

COMMISSIONER JACOBS: So on Item Number 3 - -  

MR. BUTLER: Uh-huh. 
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COMMISSIONER JACOBS: - -  essentially what you 

.re saying is that there are some specifications which 

light go to the operational limits of this equipment which 

'ou think you need and you don't have. 

MR. BUTLER: Yes. Actually that was category 

jour. But, yes, the ABB Reference Guide is kind of a 

leneric publicly, or not publicly available, but generic 

:o all projects reference guide that ABB generates. We 

lave been provided that. We suspect that there may be 

;ome project-specific bid-related documents that OGC has 

.n its possession but has not provided because of 

2onfidentiality assertions with respect to it. 

COMMISSIONER JACOBS: Okay. 

MR. BUTLER: In attempting to defend its refusal 

:o provide the projects cost of capital or either 

ievelopment or actual - -  I'm sorry, total project capital 

:osts, OGC asserts that disclosure of this information 

vould adversely effect its competitive position with 

respect to affiliates of FPL, among others. 

Similarly, OGC argues that disclosure of the 

redacted conditions precedent and the pricing information 

in the Gulfstream Natural Gas Systems contract would harm 

hlfstream's and OGC's competitive positions vis-a-vis 

Jarious competitors and customers which could include FPL 

and affiliates of FPL. 
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Finally, OGC has argued that the detail behind 

he 190 million direct construction cost estimate derives 

rom recent bids that OGC has received, and that those 

lids are claimed to be confidential. FPL doesn't 

.ecessarily accept OGC's assertions of adverse competitive 

mpacts or the claim of confidentiality for the bids that 

rere received, but we are really not here today to dispute 

hose assertions. 

The important point that we are here for today 

s that even if the asserted adverse impacts were true, 

.hat those would exist, they are not reasons to foreclose 

111 access to the requested information. 

You know, cost information is essential in 

.eview of OGC's application. You know, the Commission's 

!ule 25- 22.0813 specifically recognizes the importance of 

:ost information in a need determination proceeding such 

1s this where the petition is not based exclusively on 

isserted need for capacity. FPL's Interrogatories 82 and 

13 and its Request for Production Number 8 are simply 

ittempting to discern cost information that according to 

tule 22.081 should have been included in OGC's petition in 

:he first place. 

The PGE Generating pro forma analysis of the 

Iroject is also relevant to a full review of the project 

Ln this proceeding. Certainly an analysis of the 
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roject's economic viability by an entity that will be 

iirectly or indirectly paying for the project is a very 

iseful measure of what the actual project economics would 

le. 

By the same token, you know, whether the inputs 

:o and the results of the analysis that PG&E Generating 

?erformed comport with Doctor Nesbitt's analysis of 

xonomic viability is a very useful way of comparing and 

neasuring the reasonableness of Doctor Nesbitt's analysis. 

Lt is no answer to suggest, as OGC has done, that FPL can 

nakes its own estimates of those inputs to the analyses. 

ghat matters is how the applicant itself has analyzed its 

3wn project. 

As to the detail behind OGC's estimated direct 

Zonstruction costs, OGC's explanation for why it will not 

3isclose that information itself provides a compelling 

reason for FPL to need to see it. OGC admits that what it 

has done is to take bids and then to adjust those bids to, 

vote, reflect project-specific differences, quote. 

So, in other words, they haven't actually used 

the bids, or haven't necessarily used the bid numbers 

they received, they have adjusted them to do something, 

presumably to reflect what they consider to be more 

appropriate figures for the project at hand. But, it is 

certainly very relevant to FPL and important to this 
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lroceeding to be able to see what it was that, you know, 

IGC actually got as bids, and what adjustments it made. 

therwise we are just having to take their word for it 

.hat those adjustments were reasonable and appropriate. 

Without access to the detail and OGC's specific 

.ationale for that detail, FPL and the Commission really 

:an't meaningfully assess the reasonableness of that 

:onstruction cost estimate. 

Where disclosure of confidential business 

.nformation is essential to the proceedings, disclosure 

lust be allowed with whatever protections may be fashioned 

:o avoid unnecessary hardship to the disclosing party. 

:hat is the holding in Goodyear Tire and Rubber Company v. 

:ooey, 359 So.2d 1200,  which both of us have cited for 

iifferent reasons. 

In order to accommodate OGC's stated concerns 

wer disclosing the requested cost information and pro 

forma analyses to FPL or its affiliates, what we propose 

:o you is to limit disclosure to FPL's outside counsels 

ind its outside consultants with their entering into an 

igreement with OGC and whoever else it needs to be, that 

:hey will not further disclose that information to 

Jersonnel at FPL or its affiliates. And this would fully 

iddress OGC's stated concern, which is that this 

information gets into the hands of FPL or FPL affiliate 
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lersonnel who are competitors of OGC, and that, you know, 

hose people can use it against OGC's competitive 

.nterests. 

None of us sitting here at the table plan on 

milding any merchant plants soon. So, you know, if we 

lust have the information in our bounds not to disclose it 

:o FPL or its affiliates, there really should not be a 

ralid concern about that disclosure. 

Finally, I would like to - -  

COMMISSIONER JACOBS: That was a point, but 

finish, I will ask when you are done. 

MR. BUTLER: No, go ahead. Sorry. 

COMMISSIONER JACOBS: The point that was raised, 

ihich is an interesting one, is that they are not 

iecessarily going to be concerned about the lawyers or 

wen the employees of your respective companies. Their 

Zoncern is that your contractors, i.e., the consultants 

:hat you may contract with who are very active in this 

Zommunity of expertise will have a natural incentive to 

inquire in that. 

MR. BUTLER: Well, interestingly, I think that 

:he argument or the stated concern is the opposite in what 

ue were talking about on the Altos models to what we are 

zalking being here. There they are not all that concerned 

%bout FPL personnel seeing the models, because they don't 
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iiew, Altos doesn't view the FPL personnel as their 

Zompetitors. They view some of these outside consultants. 

Here, though, on this issue that we are talking 

3bout now, I think it is has flipped. Here I don't think 

there is any valid concern that telling, you know, the 

attorneys representing FPL or these kind of economic 

nodeling consultants that FPL may have as outside 

zonsultants is going to hurt the competitive interests of 

3GC, or of Gulfstream Natural Gas, or ABB. Their concern 

is that this information gets to FPL or its affiliates and 

that those people will use it either to craft a better 

competitive position or in future bargaining with those 

companies or something like that. So here the fix we are 

proposing is kind of the opposite fix, it is to not let 

the FPL personnel have it, and to, instead, restrict it 

only to the attorneys and the consultants. 

COMMISSIONER JACOBS: Got you. 

MR. BUTLER: Finally, you know, turning to the 

last of my categories regarding the ABB reference guide 

that we have been provided and the statement in their 

response that responsive documents include but are not 

said to be limited to the reference guide. Frankly, we 

don't know what else, if anything, it is that ABB has - -  I 

mean, I'm sorry, that OGC has that would be responsive to 

this request. They have not identified to us specific 
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jocuments that are responsive to this particular request, 

m t  have been withheld because of a claim of 

zonfidentiality or other basis for nondisclosure. 

We just have this ambiguous statement that the 

responsive documents include this, and therefore 

presumably might include something else. I would be a 

little surprised if OGC does not have something beyond 

just the reference guide. Because as I mentioned at the 

mtset, that is really a very generic document, not 

project specific, and I would suspect that they have 

gotten more specific understandings with ABB than just 

that generic reference guide. 

If not, let them tell us that they have not, and 

But we will just go to trial based on that understanding. 

if they have other documents, I think at this point the 

only fair thing to do is to have them produce those 

documents to us. And we would certainly be willing to 

enter into appropriate nondisclosure agreements. But it 

is too late now to have them today start identifying those 

documents, and then having another one of these hearings 

somewhere, you know, down the rode where we and they can't 

agree on whether those documents should be produced to us. 

They are responsive, they had a burden to come 

forward with saying what they were and then justify good 

cause why they should not be produced. We don't know 
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nything about them. 

air to do is to produce them to us. Thank you. 

And at this point the only thing 

MS. BOWMAN: Commissioner Jacobs, if I can add 

ome additional comments. 

COMMISSIONER JACOBS: Okay. Keep me in line. 

o ahead. 

MS. BOWMAN: Florida Power would like to address 

ubstantively the same categories of documents. OGC has 

efused to produce documents which are the subjects of 

'lorida Power's Production Request Number 7, 9, 16, 17, 

8, 24, and 38, which encompass the pro forma and 

,ugust 18th memorandum which OGC has then countered with a 

lotion for protective order. 

Taking in reverse order the documents discussed 

iy FPL's counsel, it is my understand that any remaining 

23B documents and/or Gulfstream documents are being 

rithheld by OGC based on their contention that they have 

mtered into confidentiality agreements with those 

:ompanies relating to the nondisclosure of various 

.nforrnation which those companies consider to be 

:onf ident ial . 

I would like to just point out to you, 

:ommissioner Jacobs, that in the precedent agreement which 

ias been attached to Mr. Karloff's testimony, the 

recedent agreement between Gulfstream and OGC - -  
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COMMISSIONER JACOBS: This is the gas. 

MS. BOWMAN: Yes, this is the gas agreement. 

ulfstream indicates an exception to the nondisclosure 

greement that OGC has entered into which is that if it 

ecomes necessary to provide information in order to 

btain a regulatory certification, that that would be 

ppropriate. And it suggests certain protections be 

rovided in those circumstances and asks OGC to request 

hose protections. 

We think that those protections would be 

ppropriate as to all of these documents, and basically it 

s a two-fold protection. That OGC would produce the ABB 

nd Gulfstream documents and not be in violation of any 

,onfidentiality agreements if the disclosure of those 

locuments was limited to persons necessary for use only in 

he litigation and not for any commercial purpose. In 

ither words, I would include in addition to what FPL has 

iffered as an alternative protection not just consultants 

md counsel in this case, but also any company personnel 

.hat would be necessary to decision-making in connection 

iith the litigation. And certainly there could be certain 

)revisions relating to the disclosure of the personnel to 

ihich that information had been provided. 

Moving on to the documents that OGC is 

:ontending it need not produce because they are simply 



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

1 2  

1 3  

1 4  

15  

1 6  

1 7  

1 8  

19  

20 

2 1  

22 

23 

24 

25 

45 

onfidential or proprietary information, we would suggest 

hat OGC, except with respect to their pro forma, the PG&E 

ro forma and the August 18 memorandum, which are the only 

wo documents which are the subject of their motion for 

rotective order have not met the standard to protect any 

f the other documents which they claim are confidential. 

nd that is they have not given you sufficient information 

o determine whether those records ought to be protected 

nd certainly haven't given us sufficient information to 

etermine whether we ought to agree that they should be 

rotected. 

What they have done is they have just simply 

isted them in response to production requests, 

etter of such and such a date between OGC and ABB 

onfidential proprietary business information. And I 

rould suggest that that is insufficient under both the 

'ommission's rules and the case law to meet what they have 

o put before you, which is a showing that these documents 

re entitled to protection. And they have not come 

orward with that showing as to any of the documents 

,xcept they arguably have with regard to the pro forma and 

he August 18th memorandum which are the subject of the 

lrotective order and which is not all-inclusive of the 

locuments that they are claiming are proprietary and 

rithholding on that basis. 

identified 
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I don't think it is appropriate for them to 

imply be able to object and say that these documents 

hich we have cursorily identified are proprietary and 

onfidential and withhold them and give you no basis to 

ake a finding of fact that they are, in fact, entitled to 

rotection, and then have an order entered that says they 

on't have to disclose them at all. 

I think that the proper procedure would have 

een for them to identify the reasons that those 

onstitute trade secrets or confidential proprietary 

nformation and then to permit a rebuttal of that. And 

hen for you to be able to make a finding of fact in that 

egard. 

And, therefore, except as to the documents that 

re subject to the motion for protective order, we would 

ontend that there would be no issue with regard to 

,hether those ought to be produced at this time. They 

imply ought to be produced because they haven't come 

orward and made the proper showing to you that these are 

,ntitled to protection. 

A s  to the other documents, I think it is clear 

nder the law that even if those documents are entitled to 

Irotection, they ought to be given only limited projection 

ihen there is a showing that there is a reasonable 

iecessity for those documents in the litigation. 
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And I think that the proposal offered by Florida 

'ower & Light, which provides an extensive amount of 

lrotection to disclosure outside of this litigation, and 

he alternative, which I have suggested, which only adds 

hose persons in the companies necessary to the 

lecision-making in the litigation is sufficient 

)rotection, and is what would usually happen in this 

:ircumstance. 

Very rarely should discoverable information be 

!ompletely not subject to any kind of discovery. 

!ertainly there are kinds of information that everybody 

)elieves ought to be entitled to protection. That doesn't 

lean we don't get to see it. It means that we don't 

iisclose it, we use it only in this litigation, and that 

re limit the personnel that has access to that 

.nformation, and that is adequate protection. 

What it doesn't mean is that they get to make 

illegations, and then when we go and ask them to produce 

:he documents that are the basis of those allegations, 

:hey get to say, no, those are proprietary and 

:onfidential, and we don't have to show them to you. You 

just have to trust us that our allegations are accurate. 

And I would just suggest that we have the right 

10 test those allegations. And we have the right to 

access to those supporting documents, and that there are 
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Jrotections available that can be put into place that 

rould serve those purposes adequately, and that do not 

require you to make a decision that we either do or we 

3on't get them absolutely. 

COMMISSIONER JACOBS: Very well. Mr. Wright, I 

~ave them substantial leeway, so I will afford you the 

same. 

MR. WRIGHT: I will be as quick as I can, Your 

3onor. The documents that are at issue here are, I 

Delieve, a document identified - -  we have identified all 

>f these documents to them. They have made some 

statements to the effect that we haven't identified 

iocuments, but we have. We have identified all known 

clocuments known to us and our clients that would be 

responsive to their production requests. 

The documents at issue here are the PG&E 

Zenerating pro forma, an August 18, 1999 memorandum, a 

June 8th, 1999 ABB bid summary, an adjustment sheet for 

the Okeechobee Generating Project relative to the 

June 8th, 1999 ABB bid summary which was related to a 

different project as indicated in our papers. The 

estimated cost for OGC was derived from that adjusted for 

project-specific conditions here. 

COMMISSIONER JACOBS: And that goes into the 

pro forma analysis, those bids of third parties? 
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MR. WRIGHT: Here is the fact as I understand 

t, Commissioner Jacobs. OGC has not received a bid, per 

e, for this, for this project. They have received a bid 

or another project. 

COMMISSIONER JACOBS: I understand. 

MR. WRIGHT: Of identical configuration. The 

ame, what we call two-on-two configuration of ABB GT 24 

ombined cycle gas-fired power plants, and it has been 

djusted to reflect Florida conditions at the Okeechobee 

ite. 

COMMISSIONER JACOBS: I got you. 

MR. WRIGHT: The last of the documents at issue 

.ere is the unredacted precedent agreement between OGC and 

lulfstream Natural Gas System, our gas transporter. 

Just to over, so I covered the fact that we have 

dentified all documents. Similarly, I will tell you that 

he unredacted precedent agreement is regarded as 

ionfidential proprietary business information by both OGC 

.nd Gulfstream and is the subject of a confidentiality 

lgreement as between OGC and Gulfstream. 

Similarly, the detailed cost information in the 

LBB bid summary is regarded as confidential proprietary 

usiness information by both OGC and ABB, and is also the 

iubject of a confidentiality agreement as between ABB and 

)GC or PG&E Generating or both. The pro forma is an 



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

1 2  

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

2 1  

22 

23 

24 

25 

5 0  

nternal PG&E Generating document. The memorandum is 

imilarly an internal PG&E Generating document. 

In the previous - -  I will start here. In the 

irevious conversation you asked what the tension was. 

[ere is the tension in this situation. These documents 

Ire highly sensitive, competitively sensitive, 

:onfidential proprietary business information that we and 

bur gas transportation supplier, Gulfstream, and our 

inticipated equipment vendor, ABB, regard as such and 

-egard as trade secrets. 

This information is information that is 

lisclosed basically to no one outside of these. With 

-espect to the pro forma, neither PG&E Generating or OGC 

)r any affiliate thereof discloses that pro forma to the 

nvestment bankers or anybody else. It is an internal 

iighly secret document. 

It contains extremely sensitive, competitively 

sensitive information including but not limited to PG&E 

:enerating's what we call forward price curves for energy 

m d  capacity. And if I can suggest maybe you visualize 

:his, it's a set of spreadsheets. It is a set of 

spreadsheets that shows various data and then results 

Jased on that data. It contains forward price curves, and 

~y that we mean the projections year-by-year of what the 

xices for gas are going to be, what the prices for 
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lectricity are going to be. 

COMMISSIONER JACOBS: Those are industry, they 

onform with industry assumptions and industry 

tandards,do they not? And I'm not trying to get you to 

o to a place where you don't want to go. 

MR. MOYLE: Can I just jump in for a second? I 

rould say that they don't. What we are talking about is 

tuff that is unique to PG&E Generating. I mean, they may 

Lave an assumption that is different than what FP&L has or 

ihat some other company, that is why they are so 

ensitive. 

I mean, to use an analogy like a law firm, what 

re are being asked for are what is your billing rate, how 

iuch do you pay your paralegals, your secretary, all of 

his very, very sensitive information that just by the 

,cry nature of we have got a bunch o f  lawyers in the room 

oday shows how intense this competition is. 

I mean, we are going to be talking about prices 

n the wholesale energy market, This information helps 

'ou figure out your price. It would do tremendous damage 

o us to have to disclose this. And that is in response 

o your question about is it different. It shows our 

hinking as to what we think future prices are going to 

le. 

COMMISSIONER JACOBS: Okay. 
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MR. WRIGHT: It is information developed 

internally for the competitive purpose of evaluating 

markets and potential projects in markets. It is 

nationwide. It would be susceptible to being used to 

identify similar cost information and pricing information 

for every project that PG&E Generating would be developing 

in the United States. It includes also costs of capital, 

rates of return and net revenue projections. 

And by the way, to let you know how secret this 

is, and this is kind of by way of responding to your 

question of does it conform to industry standards, I 

haven't seen it. Mr. Moyle hasn't seen it. Mr. LaVia 

hasn't seen it. This is a highly secret, highly 

competitively sensitive document. It also contains 

information that goes to the very core of how PG&E 

Generating makes its business decisions. The tension - -  

and accordingly, we assert the trade secret privilege 

provided by the Florida Evidence Code to protect this 

information. 

I will tell you that trade secret privilege may 

be overcome as a matter of law if the party seeking that 

information can show a reasonable need. We don't believe 

that either FPL, or FPC, or TECO can show a reasonable 

need. The information that we are talking about is 

similar to information developed by others. But every 
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ompany, whether it is Duke, or FP&L Energy, or TECO Power 

ervices, or Progress Energy Corp, or CSW Energy, or 

nybody else has their own take on what is commonly called 

n the industry, Commissioner, the forward price curve. 

nd it is big news and it is secret. And it is one of the 

ey factors that determines whether one wants to 

articipate in a market and how one evaluates the 

sotential in that market. 

FPL, I bet, knows as much - -  has as much basic 

nformation about the Florida wholesale power market as 

'G&E Generating does. They can develop their own forward 

,rice curve. I would frankly be surprised if the haven't. 

'PL has recently developed and is proposing to develop not 

lnly Greenfield gas-fired combined cycle units, but 

.epowering gas-fired combined cycle units. 

leveloping gas-fired combined cycle power plants in at 

east four states, Texas, Washington, Massachusetts, and 

'ennsylvania that I know. They know a lot about what 

iquipment costs, they can make informed decisions about 

)otential rates of return and so on. 

FPL Energy is 

And my point is this. They don't need this 

.nformation if their purpose is to test the validity of 

.he evidence upon which we have based our base. That, in 

iact, is Doctor Nesbitt's testimony and Doctor Nesbitt's 

malyses. If they want to test the validity and challenge 
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he validity of our affirmative case - -  we have got a 

urden, our burden is to put on competent substantial 

vidence as to all of the factors in the statutes. We 

ave done that. We have put on extensive evidence 

egarding the economic viability of this project, where it 

ill fall in Florida's protection supply stack, and so on 

ased on Doctor Nesbitt's analyses. 

If they want to challenge that - -  and that is 

ur case in chief as to cost-effectiveness of this project 

n addition to our conceptual, if you will, position that 

ince power purchases will only be made when it is less 

xpensive than another alternative, it has got to be 

ost-effective to the ratepayers that you are concerned 

ith. But if they want to test that, they have got all 

he information they need to test it. 

Accordingly, we don't believe they meet the 

easonable necessity test of overcoming the protection 

ccorded the trade secret privilege. And the trade secret 

lrivilege does indeed extend to requiring or providing the 

lrovision by the tribunal that discovery not be had at 

11. In Federal Deposit Insurance Corp v. Balkaney 

phonetic), quoting another case, Hollywood Beach Hotel 

.nd Gulf Club v. Gilliland, the court stated, "The rule 

hat allows a party to request production of its 

Ipponent's records is in no sense designed to afford a 
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itigant an avenue to pry into his adversary's business or 

o on a fishing expedition to uncover business methods, 

onfidential relations, or other facts pertaining to the 

usiness . I' 

And whether their real intent is to be on a 

ishing expedition, I know that language is somewhat 

nflammatory, or not, the effect would be the same. The 

ffect would be to allow them to pry into my client's 

8usiness, to uncover their confidential relations, to 

ncover their secrets, their trade secrets, their valuable 

ntellectual property and other facts known to them 

lertaining to their business. 

The analysis as to ABB extends somewhat further. 

le don't want our competitors to know what we are paying 

or our turbines and the details of our - -  the components 

If our construction costs, and neither does ABB. When 

hey go to negotiate with FPL, or TECO Power Services, or 

'PL Energy, or anybody else, they don't want to go into 

.hose negotiations knowing that they have somehow found 

)ut what is being paid as between them and another client. 

And similarly with respect to the Gulfstream 

)recedent agreement, the pricing terms of that agreement 

tre individually negotiated between Gulfstream and each 

)otential shipper, in this case OGC. The conditions 

)recedent are not standardized conditions precedent. They 
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ire individually negotiated. And the future service 

)ptions are similarly individually negotiated. 

;ecret as to PG&E and our future service options as to 

That we have to do in order to trigger the other 

)erformance obligations under the contract. And certainly 

:he pricing is very sensitive and very secret as to us, 

tnd similarly with respect to Gulfstream, and we have 

?xplained this in our papers. 

They are 

Gulfstream doesn't want to go negotiate with FPL 

)r with anybody else if they know what they have agreed to 

:harge OGC for gas shipment. So the tension is the 

iension between protecting our interests and our trade 

secrets versus an asserted reasonable necessity for this 

tnformation. And we assert to you they don't have and 

:an't show that reasonable necessity. 

COMMISSIONER JACOBS: Okay. 

MR. WRIGHT: The one other document is this 

August 8th memorandum. It contains a fair amount of 

information relating to other projects outside the state. 

lnd the movants have indicated they are willing to not see 

my of that information. It will be kind of hard to take 

it out, and it also relates to our pricing strategy. I 

Lhink in one of the motions they have asked for an 

in camera review of that, and that might be something as 

:o that document that we could accommodate. 
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Let me just make sure I have gotten everything I 

uanted to say. I think that concludes my argument. Thank 

you. 

COMMISSIONER JACOBS: Excuse me just a minute. 

MR. WRIGHT: Let me make one more point, I found 

another note. I will be quick. 

COMMISSIONER JACOBS: Sure. 

MR. WRIGHT: Thank you. Following up on a 

comment you made earlier in this discussion, the 

disclosure to any of the intervenor's outside consultants 

would potentially be disastrous to us. The disclosure of 

our forward price curves to an outside consultant who is 

working for another merchant developer somewhere in - -  you 

know, I'm familiar with this business, and I know a lot of 

the consultants are doing so, of our forward price curves, 

or hurdle rate, our cost assumptions, would create an 

untenable situation for the consultant because you can't 

unknow or unlearn something that you know or have learned. 

And from our perspective it would be virtually 

impossible to police. I mean, you have got some synapses 

in the consultants brain that says their hurdle rate is 

whatever it is, some number. And, you know, that just 

might color the way the person thinks about it. And if 

they came into possession of the documents you never know 

what is going happen. It is a real concern. Things get 
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Jut by accident. If they don't have them, they can't get 

3ut . 

COMMISSIONER JACOBS: I want to do something 

real briefly. I was thinking about cutting the time 

short, but if you would, I want to give you - -  I want to 

3sk you a question and I will give you a brief opportunity 

to respond. Actually, I'm going to ask you to respond to 

3 point that they raised. That being that you have the 

essence - -  in your own institutional knowledge and in your 

internal knowledge have the essence of background and fact 

that you should need to be able to challenge any position 

that they would raise without access to the highly 

sensitive data - -  let me not characterize it as that - -  to 

the sensitive data as he characterizes it. 

MR. BUTLER: What we have is information that 

FPL or its affiliates would use for its own analyses. 

What we want to see is what the applicant in this 

proceeding actually used or should have actually used in 

analyzing its own project. You know, those may or may not 

be the same. We want to know what it is that OGC and its 

parent and affiliates consider in reviewing this project. 

You know, they have presented in this case a 

witness, Doctor Nesbitt, who pretty much prides himself on 

not relying on anything from OGC. He just uses kind of 

generic industry standard type information, but that is 
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learly not what the company has used itself in assessing 

his project. And I think that it is important to know as 

o the true economic viability of this project what OGC 

Lnd its affiliates consider, not what FPL might guess that 

.hey would consider, or what it would use if it had made 

.he same consideration. You know, that is not what is 

)efore us. 

One other thing I wanted to add, it is a 

lifferent point, but it is just to clarify. Mr. Wright 

lad mentioned the fact that some of the PG&E information 

joes to projects other than this particular project, and I 

iadn't made it clear when I was explaining FPL's proposal, 

?e are not looking for them to disclose to us information 

ibout pricing or other details on projects other than this 

)articular project. 

COMMISSIONER JACOBS: Very well. 

Ms. Bowman, do you have anything to add on the 

pestion that I asked? 

MS. BOWMAN: Yes, Commissioner Jacobs. I would 

just make two points. OGC's position is that with Doctor 

Jesbitt's modeling and inputs and assumptions and with 

vhat is generally available to Florida Power Corporation, 

$e have enough to analyze or evaluate this project. But 

vhat is not accurate about that is this, Doctor Nesbitt, 

3s Florida Power & Light pointed out, Doctor Nesbitt's 
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nalysis does not include any real numbers. 

rediction and his assumptions. So there is no way to 

est and see whether what OGC is putting forward through 

octor Nesbitt is actually what OGC intends to do with 

his project. And I think it ought to be of great concern 

o the Commission that what they are telling the 

ommission on the one hand through Doctor Nesbitt may be 

omething distinctly different from what they actually 

lan to do and how they actually plan to operate in 

lorida . 

It is all his 

And, in fact, if there was no distinction 

etween the two, if that was sufficient for us to attack 

hat they are saying that they are going to be capable of 

oing in this state, then it seems to me they would have 

iven us the information because there would be no 

ivergence between what Doctor Nesbitt has said and what 

IGC would be purporting that they could do in basis of 

lerf ormance . 
Second is, OGC is asking Florida and asking this 

:ommission to determine that there is a need for this 

moject because they can add to reliability. They say 

.ely on us, we are going to run 93 percent of the time. 

le are going to increase reserve margins and on and on. 

'hey have put at issue central in this case the economic 

riability of this plant. And Doctor Nesbitt's analysis 
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sing numbers that are his own and not OGC's are not a 

ufficient test of how this plant is actually going to 

lperate in the state if it is permitted to be built. 

COMMISSIONER JACOBS: Let me pose it this way. 

fould you be able to - -  is there a way for you to assess, 

et's look at the specifications of the turbines. Is 

.here not an ability on behalf of yourself or Power & 

ight to acquire the information to assess whether or not 

.heir statements as to the operation of specifications of 

:he turbines is going to be reasonable? Whether or not - -  

: mean, because I wouldn't imagine that the manufacturing 

:ompany is going to go and produce a specially designed 

:urbine for them that would operate at certain 

ipecifications beyond ar below what they are normally 

joing to sell. Is that not a reasonable assumption to 

flake? 

MS. BOWMAN: Well, I think with regard to the 

xicing information relating to the turbines and/or 

;ulfstream's transportation agreement, those are issues 

;eparate from that which they are asserting that we have 

sufficient industry information. I think they are 

sserting that those pricing - -  

COMMISSIONER JACOBS: I'm sorry, I mixed the 

:wo. My main concern was that what they are asserting is 

wailable generally in the industry. 
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MS. BOWMAN: And our response to that would be 

lis, Commissioner, that there is information generally 

vailable in the industry that Florida Power Corporation 

tilizes and develops its numbers, but those numbers may 

ell suggest that what OGC has put forward through Doctor 

esbitt, using Doctor Nesbitt's analysis and not any real 

roject numbers, that this project isn't going to make 

oney . 

And if that is what we discover from general 

ndustry information, then it creates the very need that 

e are saying exists, which is to see what their project 

ea1 numbers are, and OGC's basis for saying they are 

oing to make money when our own numbers, what we can 

ather in the industry indicates that this is not an 

conomically viable plant. 

COMMISSIONER JACOBS: Very well. I'm sorry, I 

id say I would allow you - -  go right ahead briefly. 

MR. WRIGHT: Thank you. A couple of things. 

'irst off, the movants here have not had a chance to take 

Ir. - -  well, it hasn't worked out for them to take Mr. 

'innerty's deposition yet. That will be next week. When 

hey take his deposition they will learn that at the time 

re went forward with the project, filing the need 

ietermination, all, in fact, that OGC did rely on was 

)actor Nesbitt's analyses. 
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What they have asked for and they have made it 

-ery clear by their phraseology is what we want is some 

Ither internal secret information. You know, that is not 

ieed. What we want is this other information. Their 

issertion that it is clearly, that Doctor Nesbitt's 

inalyses are not what the company has used is just not 

:rue as I indicated. 

As regards the pro forma, the pro forma relates 

:o other projects throughout the country. 

:herein is not separable. They indicated they would be 

Jilling to have us screen out other information, that 

.nformation relating to other projects. That is not 

Iossible in the case of the PG&E Generating pro forma. 

:he information is inseparable, and it would permit the 

identification of information with respect to other 

xojects by what you might call reverse engineering; 

iorking back from what is in there to what would apply 

?lsewhere. 

The information 

Ms. Bowman's statement that Doctor Nesbitt's 

information is not sufficient as a case in chief is simply 

3 conclusory allegation regarding the adequacy of the 

widence that we have put forward in our case in chief. 

In fact, she went on to say that FPC's numbers derived 

Erom generally available industry sources, thereby 

3dmitting that such information is generally available, 
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3y suggest that this project won't make money, that it 

ight not be economically viable. 

And I would suggest to you there is plenty of 

nformation readily available to the Commission based on 

hat the utilities in Florida are already doing that would 

onfirm that this is. But the real point in this motion 

rgument is the information is available and if their 

nalyses using credible industry source information were 

o indicate that the Okeechobee generating project were 

ot economically viable, they could attempt to put that 

nformation on and those conclusions on as part of their 

ase in rebuttal to our case in chief and we would have a 

hance to contest that in the same way they have a chance 

o contest Doctor Nesbitt's analyses. 

COMMISSIONER JACOBS: Very well. Next issue. 

MS. BOWMAN: Commissioner Jacobs, just a point 

f clarification before we go on. When we were talking 

bout the Gulfstream documents, everybody has been 

eferring only to the precedent agreement. There are some 

dditional Gulfstream documents which are designated in 

esponse to an answer to a production request by Florida 

lower Corporation, I believe it is Number 7, that they 

Lave also claimed are confidential. And I just didn't 

rant there to be the impression that there was just the 

me agreement that was at issue. 
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COMMISSIONER JACOBS: SO to be clear, YOU Want 

3 make sure that when we rule as to that document that we 

re ruling to the document and its attachments? 

MS. BOWMAN: Well, I don't know that there are 

pecific attachments, but there are documents related to 

hat. 

COMMISSIONER JACOBS: Related to that. Okay, I 

nderstand. 

MR. WRIGHT: Just to be clear, they are 

ocuments that we obtained from Gulfstream that Gulfstream 

egards as confidential, Your Honor. 

COMMISSIONER JACOBS: Okay, I understand. 

MR. BUTLER: And for the sake of clarity, 

ecause this became unclear to me in an answer given 

arlier by Mr. Wright, can we learn today just to either 

ake go away or know we have still got something, on the 

equest for Production Number 24 and 26, the ones that go 

o the questions of reliability, availability, maintenance 

chedule, and where we got this ABB reference guide 

mrovided, whether there are or are not any other documents 

esponsive to that. 

Because when I heard the answer by Mr. Wright, 

lr heard his description of the various documents 

nvolved, it sounded like the answer may be no, but I'm 

.ot sure. 
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MR. WRIGHT: Excuse me one minute, Your Honor. 

COMMISSIONER JACOBS: Sure. 

MR. MOYLE: And there are bunch of things, I 

if you have the time we need to get into in terms hink, 

tf scheduling and some of that. 

ome of that at that point. 

And maybe we can get into 

COMMISSIONER JACOBS: We are going to the issue 

In interrogatories, and then I think we can get to some of 

.he scheduling stuff pretty quickly, I'm hoping. And then 

re had the issues of the - -  

MS. BOWMAN: Some very brief requests for 

tdmissions. 

COMMISSIONER JACOBS: - -  admissions. 

MR. KEATING: I believe we may also have the 

.ssue of interrogatories that would be answered by 

!xperts. 

COMMISSIONER JACOBS: That was my next, unless 

:here was anything else. 

MR. BUTLER: Two related interrogatory issues 

Jhich Mr. Nieto is going to discuss with you. 

COMMISSIONER JACOBS: Okay. Let's proceed on 

:hat 

MR. NIETO: As Mr. Butler said, there are two 

issues here. The first are - -  

COMMISSIONER JACOBS: I'm sorry to interrupt 



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

67 

ou. 

ou. 

rgument, that is fine, as well. 

Did you want to give them a response? 

If you guys want to talk about it outside of 

That's up to 

MR. WRIGHT: I think that will probably work. 

'hank you. 

MR. NIETO: As I was saying, there are two 

eparate issues with the interrogatories. 

lbjections that OGC made to certain of our questions as 

roing beyond the scope of discovery allowed of testifying 

lxpert witnesses. And the second is an objection that we 

lave exceeded the scope of the maximum allowable number of 

.nterrogatories. And I will just deal with these 

ieparately, because they really raise separate issues. 

On the first objection, interrogatories going 

The first are 

)eyond the scope of experts discovery, 

really fall into two categories. The first are questions 

:hat were directed to OGC as a party or to its internal 

)ersonnel, and those are at 62 to 70, 118 and 170. All of 

:hese ask for clarification of various statements or the 

:actual basis for OGC's petition, or ask questions that 

vere directed to OGC's Mr. Karloff, an internal OGC 

:mployee. 

the interrogatories 

The second category are questions Number 119 to 

L99, which were directed to OGC's Doctor Nesbitt, who is 

in outside consultant. 
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The reasons those are two separate categories is 

hat the rule cited by OGC only applies to discovery 

irected to an outside expert, It does not apply to 

iscovery directed to a party even if the discovery is 

bout its expert. 

Shortly after that rule was enacted in 1996, a 

plit developed among the district courts on precisely 

hat issue. Some districts saying that you couldn't ask 

uestions of parties about their experts, some holding the 

~pposite. Just this past April, the Florida Supreme Court 

.esolved the issue in Allstate v. Boecher, 733 So.2d 993, 

nd they confirmed that the Rule 1.280(b) ( 4 )  is not a 

ilanket prohibition on discovery directed to parties even 

f it relates to their expert witnesses. 

Therefore, with respect to those questions 

lirected to OGC, we feel they have a duty to answer. 

low, they may not have information responsive to the 

pestion, and if that is the case, that's fine, they can 

lnswer and say they don't know the answer. 

.hat we are entitled to a response. And, quite frankly, 

ie believe they can answer some of the questions. 

But we believe 

You know, we note that OGC had a duty to 

.nvestigate the factual allegations behind its petition 

md may have gained information responsive to our 

[uestions in that form, and we would also note that the 
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iajority of our questions relate to the Altos modeling 

rhich OGC's Mr. Finnerty expressly relied upon in his 

estimony. To the extent he has knowledge, we feel that 

hey should answer the questions directed to them. 

The second category are the questions that 

.elate to Doctor Nesbitt's prefiled testimony. Now, those 

lo fall within the prohibition of the rule. They fall 

rithin its expressed terms. But the rule has a catch-all 

bxception which allows a presiding officer to allow 

urther discovery when the interest of justice would so 

rovide . 

The one qualification there is that we, as the 

)arty seeking discovery, would be required to pay the 

.easonable fee of OGC's experts in answering, which we are 

jerfectly willing to do as long as that fee is, as the 

xle says, reasonable. 

And we will feel that in this case this case 

.eally merits the exception for two reasons. First of 

111, the rule was never meant to shield a party from 

liscovery related to the merits of its case. It arose in 

he context of several Supreme Court and district court 

'ases where parties had levied burdensome interrogatories 

It their opponent's experts to discern all kinds of 

iensitive financial information regarding the expert's 

ractice in an effort to show bias or what have you. 
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In reaction to that, the Supreme Court enacted 

he rule to limit the discovery of experts so as to 

revent parties from seeking marginally relevant 

nformation that would pose an extreme burden to the 

xpert. You know, the irony here is that OGC is now using 

he rule to protect the most relevant information in this 

ase. I mean, these questions go directly to the heart of 

heir allegations before this Commission and their 

ssertion that the project is economically viable. And we 

eel it is a gross misapplication of the rule to shield 

uch discovery. 

This case is increasingly complex, and OGC 

uggests that we should just depose its witnesses. Well, 

e submit that deposition is just an inadequate substitute 

or written discovery. Most of the questions that we have 

sked are very detailed and go to the factual assumptions 

ehind the Altos modeling. You can't really expect Doctor 

esbitt or some other deponent to recall all of these 

etails on demand. 

So, basically, if you were taking depositions 

,hat you would have is a situation where we would have to 

sk questions, adjourn the deposition, let the witness 

igure out the answers, then reconvene the deposition to 

et his answers and then go on to the next round. It 

rould be a very cumbersome, very lengthy, and very 
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Zxpensive approach for both sides. 

It is much simpler for OGC to simply answer our 

questions. We would pay their experts' fees to the extent 

the questions are directed to its experts, and that would 

provide for a streamlined and efficient discovery process 

#hen we do depose Doctor Nesbitt. 

And there is really no burden to OGC here. The 

first set of questions are those directed to it as a 

party. If it has knowledge, it can answer. If it doesn't 

have knowledge, it can just say that. There is no burden 

at all. 

For the second round of questions, 119 to 199, 

which are directed to Doctor Nesbitt, we are willing to 

pay Doctor Nesbitt's time, so we don't see how that poses 

any kind of a burden to the opposing party when we are 

picking up the tab. 

The second issue really relates to that last 

point. We ran to 200 interrogatories at number 159 when 

you count subparts. So, basically, our last forty 

questions exceed the maximum number of interrogatories. 

Realizing that, we filed a motion to extend the number of 

interrogatories from 200 to 400, and we feel that that 

motion should be granted. 

OGC in this case filed a very cursory petition. 

They make all kinds of bare conclusions about the economic 
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iability of their project, its relative competitiveness 

o existing and proposed units and so forth without ever 

.eally setting forth the factual basis for those 

ssertions. 

lets of interrogatories, that is really all those 

pestions are directed to, trying to get the background 

.nformation that OGC had a duty to provide in the first 

mstance under Commission Rule 25-22.081(3). 

And if you read through our third and fourth 

In other words, we have been required to expend 

iumerous interrogatories just to get information they 

;hould have given us in the first instance. For that 

-eason alone we feel that additional interrogatories are 

Jarranted. 

Furthermore, as I suggested just a minute ago, 

fe are paying for nearly half of the questions that we 

isked because they were directed to its experts. So there 

LS certainly no burden in that respect from OGC having to 

:omply with additional discovery requests. 

For those reasons we feel both our motions, our 

notion to compel and our motion to extend the number of 

interrogatories should be granted. 

COMMISSIONER JACOBS: Okay. Ms. Bowman. 

MS. BOWMAN: We do not have a motion on this 

>oint at this time, although we have submitted similar 

interrogatories which would seek information. But we 
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Todd be willing to submit to the Commission's 

letermination as it relates to FPL's on our own issues. 

COMMISSIONER JACOBS: Mr. Wright. 

MR. WRIGHT: Thank you, Commissioner Jacobs. 

igain, I will be as quick as I can. With respect to the 

pestions propounded to OGC, many of these questions do go 

iirectly - -  even though posed to OGC, go directly to 

nformation developed by Doctor Nesbitt. 

'PL's Interrogatory Number 62 reads, "For each of the 

i l tos  management partners model runs relied upon by OGC 

ind its witnesses, identify by region the generating units 

wried by Florida Utilities, et cetera." 

For example, 

Clearly, interrogatories of this nature are 

mswerable really only by the experts or - -  really only by 

:he experts. It is good case law that we are allowed by 

taw to rely on our experts. Hypothetically, we could 

mswer these and we could say, "We relied on Doctor 

Jesbitt and we don't have any independent information 

,utside of that." As Mr. Nieto suggests, we think that 

is a waste of time. But if that is what you rule, that is 

vhat we will do. 

As regards the interrogatories propounded to 

Ioctor Nesbitt, a few things to say. FPL's offer to pay 

Eor Doctor Nesbitt's and other Altos personnel, I assume 

Ither Altos personnel time in answering ing these 
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nterrogatories was heard by my ears for the first time 

his afternoon. They had previously just wanted our 

,xperts to respond. 

Mr. Nieto is correct that the rule doesn't 

ihield parties from discovery on the merits. What the 

.ule does is what the rule does. It provides as - -  it 

rovides for how discovery on the merits is to be 

)btained. 

Mr. Nieto suggests that there would be no burden 

.n us responding since they are going to pay for our 

:onsultants' time. Certainly that takes the financial 

urden away. However, I frankly haven't counted the 

lumber of interrogatories propounded to Doctor Nesbitt, or 

loctor Nesbitt and/or Altos, but I think it is in the 

ricinity of 80 or so plus numbered subparts. And the time 

required to do it would be at least somewhat of a burden 

m our ability to prepare Doctor Nesbitt for trial. 

Ms. Bowman's suggestion or statement that we 

- .  :iled a very cursory petition is really no more than name 

:ailing. It is a conclusory statement that we didn't - -  

naybe it wasn't Ms. Bowman. If it wasn't, I'm sorry. The 

:tatement by somebody down at the other end that we filed 

i very cursory petition is just conclusory. Our petition 

vas entirely complete with respect to the required 

3llegations. And, in fact, as I'm sure you know, has 
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lready withstood motions to dismiss by both FPL and FPC. 

With respect to the maximum number of 

nterrogatories, the 247 includes only numbered subparts. 

e believe that there are other subparts where if you read 

he interrogatory it clearly asks for two or more 

ifferent things. They didn't file their motion for leave 

o propound these interrogatories until after we had to at 

east deal with them by evaluating them and objecting 

here appropriate. 

I am concerned about the burden on Doctor 

esbitt's and Mr. Blaha's time in responding to these, but 

guess I would say that given that they are willing to 

ay for them, pay for their time in responding to these 

nterrogatories, I think that is something we could work 

n. We may have to have some accommodation as to time 

ecause of other scheduling matters involving Doctor 

esbitt, but that part of it I think would be okay. 

I don't think they should be allowed to ask 

,hatever the number of interrogatories is, whether it is 

47 or 290-odd, I'm not sure what it is when you count all 

he real subparts. You all give about seven times more 

nterrogatories than Florida Rules of Civil Procedure 

lrovide in the normal course of business, and we would 

ubmit to you that 200 is enough. And If they want to 

,all and send revised interrogatories, we will treat them 
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romptly and try to get answers based on their 

epresentation that they will pay our experts to respond 

o them. 

Thank you. 

COMMISSIONER JACOBS: Okay. That leads us to 

he issue on requests for admissions. 

MS. BOWMAN: In the interest of time, 

ommissioner Jacobs, I would just like to identify and ask 

hat the Commission rule on - -  

COMMISSIONER JACOBS: I'm sorry, I may not have 

hem, but go ahead, I will write them down. 

MS. BOWMAN: Okay. Our first motion to compel 

ncluded a request that OGC be required to respond to 

'lorida Power's Request for Admissions Number 29,  30, 41 

hrough 44, and 55. Just very briefly, there are 

,asically three categories. The first, Request for 

.dmissions Number 29  and 30 go directly to allegations 

lade in OGC's petition which they apparently are now 

efusing to admit are true. I think they ought to be 

.equired to either admit or deny them. And if they feel 

he need to deny them, then they need to also withdraw 

hem from their petition. 

As to Request for Admissions Number 41 through 

4, OGC has objected to responding to these requests 

:aying that they are directed at their parent or affiliate 
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zorporations, PG&E Generating or PG&E Corp. And I would 

suggest that Florida Power is not asking that nonparties 

respond to requests for admissions, but that OGC simply 

3dmit certain facts concerning their affiliates. 

It is as though if I were to ask someone to 

3dmit that their neighbor is Mr. Green, and they are 

saying, "Well, I'm not Mr. Green, so I can't admit that." 

Cllearly they have information relating to their affiliates 

and ought to be in a position to admit or deny those 

requests. 

As to the last request, it is simply a request 

that given certain circumstances would they agree that a 

certain sets of facts was true or false, and they just 

simply have objected that the request for admission is 

argumentative. I think it is fairly simple; they can 

either admit or deny it and ought to be compelled to do 

so. 

COMMISSIONER JACOBS: Okay. Very well. 

MR. WRIGHT: Commissioner, it is covered in our 

papers. 

COMMISSIONER JACOBS: Okay. Mr. Butler. 

MR. BUTLER: Mr. Butler is here. 

COMMISSIONER JACOBS: And you are? 

MR. NIETO: Mr. Nieto. 

COMMISSIONER JACOBS: Nieto, I'm sorry. Mr. 
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ieto, meet Mr. Wright. I'm sorry. 

Anything else from staff? 

MR. KEATING: I think the only issues we haven't 

ouched on, I believe, are scheduling issues. 

COMMISSIONER JACOBS: Very well. What are the 

rimary outstanding issues on scheduling? 

MR. KEATING: I guess what the schedule is going 

o be from here on out through the hearing. 

MR. MOYLE: Commissioner Jacobs, John Moyle on 

ehalf of OGC. We did the other day receive an order 

etting the hearing for March 20th through March 22nd with 

prehearing conference on March 3rd. 

What I would suggest we need to do is work 

'ackwards. OGC has filed its testimony back, I believe in 

lctober is when we filed our original testimony, 

ctober 25th, and the original schedule had two weeks 

letween the time when we would file our testimony and the 

ime that the intervenors would file theirs. 

They asked for a little more time, I think you 

lave them a couple of weeks. But once the case got 

iontinued, they now have had our testimony for over three 

ionths and we still don't know who their witnesses are 

loing to be. We filed a motion to get that date, I think 

.hey responded and said there is some discovery issues. 

lut one of them, I think, said they could do it on 
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ebruary 8th or 9th, and the other February 4th. 

The point being we just are getting ready for 

rial, we are doing depos, we had more depos last week, we 

ave got more depos this week. We are in dire need of 

etting their intervenor testimony so we can start taking 

heir folks' depositions before we file our rebuttal 

estimony. So that is one of the issues outstanding. 

I think of lot of them with respect to 

lost-hearing briefs and that kind of thing we have pretty 

iuch talked about, and one of the earlier schedules had 

hat laid out. But really I think with a couple of 

loints, a discovery cut-off schedule and an intervenor 

estimony due date and a rebuttal date, those are the 

hings that we need to focus on and try to get established 

oday . 

MR. G W T O N :  Commissioner Jacobs, I didn't enter 

in appearance earlier. My name is Charles Guyton with 

he law firm of Steel, Hector and Davis appearing on 

)ehalf of Florida Power & Light Company. 

I would agree with Mr. Moyle that his approach 

.o things is indeed working backwards. I think what we 

lave here is a situation where we are looking at a March 

iearing date instead of a December hearing date, because 

.he Commission decided that there was a need for and time 

ior additional discovery that the original schedule did 
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ot allow. 

Most of those issues have been joined now for a 

ouple of months. And really the bottleneck, if you will, 

s the ruling on discovery. We will tell you what we told 

ounsel for OGC in late November and staff counsel several 

ther times. We need several weeks - -  actually we told 

hem we need a month from the time we gain access to the 

ltos model and the other confidential information that is 

efore you today to be able to prepare our responsive 

estimony. And I will say that I don't think we need the 

ull month or four weeks that we said in late November we 

ould need now, but we still need time to take a look 

t - -  once we get access to the model, to understand how 

t works, to be able to address that in our testimony. 

ecause that is, as has been observed several times here 

oday, the real heart and soul of this case. 

If we were to get access later this week, we 

,auld still submit that what is reasonable to prepare and 

o have a meaningful opportunity to prepare and critique 

he model would be another three weeks to file testimony. 

ad then I think we should work from that day forward to 

igure out what the interim or intervening dates are that 

rould allow us to accomplish the March hearing date. 

And if we don't have enough time for the March 

iearing date, then let it slip. But we are not proposing 
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hat. 

ime to put our case together. 

retting the ruling on the discovery and the access to the 

.nformation. 

What we are simply proposing is that we need enough 

And the key to that is 

COMMISSIONER JACOBS: Ms. Bowman. 

MS. BOWMAN: Yes, Commissioner Jacobs. Florida 

'ower is in accord with Florida Power & Light on this 

.ssue. I would just comment that the suggestion that we 

lad earlier in papers filed in response to OGC's 

;cheduling order suggested that we could be prepared to 

iile testimony by what would now be tomorrow was based on 

)ur understanding that the discovery matters would have 

)een dealt with sometime in the January time frame which 

ias been prevented by the on-going business of the 

:ommission and some other thinks. 

COMMISSIONER JACOBS: I didn't realize it had 

:aken this long. I wish we could do it . 

MS. BOWMAN: And what we would appreciate, 

Likewise, is an opportunity to have the rulings on these 

liscovery issues and a sufficient period of time to permit 

3ur personnel or consultants to evaluate and utilize the 

nodels and any other information obtained in order to 

submit any testimony we would have in regard to those 

zopics. And I think that the time frame suggested by Mr. 

:uyton in the nature of three weeks would be appropriate 
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nd doable if we could gain immediate access and such 

ecessary training as OGC would require. 

COMMISSIONER JACOBS: Let's go off for just a 

oment . 

MR. WRIGHT: I think Mr. Moyle wanted to respond 

o that. 

MR. MOYLE: Well, just in brief response. To go 

ack to where we were when we had the long argument that 

ay on the motion for a continuance, they were supposed to 

ile all of their testimony three days after that 

rgument. If the only issue they have is related to an 

conomist and Doctor Nesbitt, maybe there is a little bit 

f an accommodation that can be made there. 

But with respect to any other witnesses that 

hey have or they expect to offer, they ought to go ahead 

nd file that posthaste and give us the opportunity to get 

eady for trial. 

I mean, I don't think it's a big secret that the 

onger merchant plants are delayed the better things are 

or the opponents. We want to hold this March hearing 

:ate and would urge you to do everything you can to get us 

o that date. 

COMMISSIONER JACOBS: Off the record for just a 

loment. 

(Off the record.) 
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COMMISSIONER JACOBS: Let's go back on the 

record. 

Having heard all the arguments today, here is 

how I would like to proceed. We would like to take a 

Drief period, and I mean really brief, to consider the 

xguments and we would anticipate an order by Wednesday on 

these issues. I would not want to wait any longer than 

that. Thursday morning at the very latest, but by 

Nednesday . 
We would like - -  I think what I want to do today 

is go ahead and rule that for those witnesses that - -  and 

it is up to you what they are. But if you have witnesses 

iihose testimony are not dependent upon this discovery that 

is outstanding, then I would like that testimony to be 

filed posthaste. 

Now, I don't know what those are, but if - -  and 

when I say posthaste, staff is going to come up with a 

schedule by when, when did you say you would have that? 

MR. KEATING: We will work out something this 

afternoon. 

COMMISSIONER JACOBS: Okay. So they will get 

with you. But as to witnesses whose testimony is not 

relying on this outstanding discovery, I think we ought to 

go ahead and get that filed right away. My goal would be 

to give you a period of time - -  I want to sit down with 
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staff this afternoon or in the morning and figure out what 

that would be - -  that after this order is issued that you 

uould have the time - -  if the order says you get access, 

if the order says you get access then we will sit down at 

that moment and say what period of time we would give in 

srder for you to come back with your testimony based on 

having completed that discovery. And then we would move 

forward from there. 

My goal would be to keep the March dates. I, 

quite frankly, wish we wouldn't have gotten ourselves into 

this box, but we did. But my goal is to keep the March 

dates. I would be very, very leery of moving those more 

than one day, maybe a week tops. So that is my concept of 

the schedule at the moment. And, again, we very quickly 

uould like to have some details and to have that out for 

you. 

I think that covers about everything. Did any 

3f the parties have any other matters that should come 

before the Commission today? 

MR. MOYLE: Just for your information, you heard 

a lot of motions to compel today by Florida Power & Light. 

We have served discovery on them, they have objected to 

sur discovery. We filed motions to compel last week. Mr. 

Wright and Mr. LaVia have. So there may be some more, I 

think. 
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In fairness to them, they have not yet 

esponded. If they are prepared to talk about those 

oday, seeing as we are here on a discovery dispute day it 

ay make some sense to get all the discovery issues 

esolved so we can move forward with the March hearing. 

ut you did ask the broad question are there other 

utstanding issues, and we do have some motions to compel 

iscovery that they have objected to. 

COMMISSIONER JACOBS: And you did mention those 

arlier. I'm sorry. 

MR. GUYTON: I was just simply going to say I 

ppreciate the opportunity, but since they were served on 

s at 4:30 Friday afternoon we are not prepared to address 

hose yet today. 

COMMISSIONER JACOBS: Okay. I would appreciate 

he parties if they would work through those. If we need 

o I will - -  we will do an emergency hearing to take care 

)f those. That's where I am on that. If I've got an hour 

re will do it. Great. 

With that, we are adjourned. 

(Oral argument concluded at 4:lO p.m.) 
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